



## YOUTH COMMISSION

City Hall—Council Chambers, 590 40th Ave NE

Wednesday, April 12, 2023

6:00 PM

---

### AGENDA

#### **ATTENDANCE INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC**

Members of the public who wish to attend may do so in-person, by calling **1-312-626-6799** and **entering meeting ID** 848 9123 4752 or by Zoom at <https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84891234752>. For questions please call the Administration Department at 763-706-3610.

#### **CALL TO ORDER**

#### **ROLL CALL/STATUS OF MEMBERSHIP**

#### **APPROVAL OF AGENDA**

MOTION: Move to approve the April 12, 2023 Youth Commission agenda.

#### **APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

1. **Approval of February 8, 2023 Youth Commission Meeting Minutes.**

MOTION: Move to approve the February 8, 2023 Youth Commission meeting minutes.

#### **PRESENTATION**

2. **Information about Summer Job Openings and Recreation Youth Volunteer Opportunities from Recreation Program Coordinator Katie Holznagel.**

#### **OLD BUSINESS**

2. **Continued Haunted House Production Report and Discussion.**  
Commissioner Marquez, Tabor, Garcia Genis, and Solem will present information related to research on potential dates, locations, need for permits, volunteers and expenses related to a Haunted House Production.
3. **Continued Discussion Regarding Water Lantern Festival.**  
Commissioner Ali, Rogne and William will present information related to research on potential dates, locations, need for permits, volunteers and expenses related to a Water Lantern Festival.

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

4. **Yearly Review of Youth Commission Bylaws.**

#### **ADJOURNMENT**

*Auxiliary aids or other accommodations for individuals with disabilities are available upon request when the request is made at least 72 hours in advance. Please contact Administration at 763-706-3610 to make arrangements.*



**YOUTH COMMISSION**  
**City Hall—Council Chambers, 590 40th Ave NE**  
**Wednesday, February 08, 2023**  
**6:00 PM**

---

**MINUTES**

The following are the minutes for the Meeting of the Youth Commission held at 6:00 pm on Wednesday, February 8, 2023, in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 590 40th Avenue NE, Columbia Heights, Minnesota.

**CALL TO ORDER**

Meeting called to order at 6:05 pm by Commission Chair Ali.

**ROLL CALL/STATUS OF MEMBERSHIP**

Members Present: Commissioners Ali, Garcia Genis, Israelson, Hernandez-Monroy, Johnson, Mamo, Marquez, Solem, Rogne, Tabor, Williams

Members Absent: Hussein

Council Liaison: Mayor Márquez Simula

Also Present: Sara Ion, City Clerk; Ben Sandell, Communications Coordinator; KT Jacobs, Resident.

**APPROVAL OF AGENDA**

MOTION: Move to approve the February 8, 2023 Youth Commission agenda. All ayes, motion carried.

**APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

**Approval of 12/14/22 and 1/11/23 Youth Commission Meeting Minutes.**

MOTION: Move to approve the December 14, 2022 and January 11, 2023 Youth Commission meeting minutes. All ayes, motion carried.

**CORRESPONDENCE**

**Meeting, Event and Volunteering Reports.**

Commissioners discussed government meetings that they attended as well as events / activities they recently volunteered at. Youth Commission members gained a lot of insights about pre planning, the level of volunteers / man power needed and even signage to make an event successful by volunteering at the recent City Snow Blast Event. They had a lot of take aways for planning their own events, and the amount of work that will be needed to get an event started.

## **OLD BUSINESS**

### **Water Lantern Festival Report and Discussion.**

Commissioner Ali presented her preliminary research on potential dates, locations, volunteers, and expenses related to a Water Lantern Festival. She and the other commissioners researching this item plan on bringing even more information to the next meeting.

### **Haunted House Production Report and Discussion.**

Commissioner Marquez presented information related to research on potential dates, the number of volunteers needed, and expenses related to a Haunted House Production. He and the other commissioners researching this item plan on bringing even more information to the next meeting.

## **NEW BUSINESS**

Mayor Amáda Márquez Simula presented information regarding an upcoming volunteer opportunity for CoHi Con: The Comfy Con that will be happening on March 4, 2023.

## **ADJOURNMENT**

Chair Ali adjourned the meeting at 7:30 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

---

Sara Ion, City Clerk

## **COLUMBIA HEIGHTS YOUTH COMMISSION BY-LAWS**

~~2022-2023~~ **2023-2024 BY-LAWS OFFICIALLY APPROVED BY YOUTH COMMISSION VOTE MAY 11, 2023**

*The purpose of the Columbia Heights Youth Commission is to serve as an advisory body to the Columbia Heights City Council, and other Boards and Commissions as appropriate, inspire and bring to light new ideas from a youth perspective, create an educational environment for youth looking to expand their knowledge of government and leadership functions, and provide experience-building opportunities for area youth seeking increased community and local government engagement. These By-Laws are adopted in consultation with City Staff, the City Council, and Youth Commission to establish and assist in the function of procedures of operation. City Council can, by majority vote, remove the Youth Commission for inactivity or lack of maintaining minimal membership, unethical behavior of individual member or membership in whole, or other determined good cause. City Council may also, by majority vote, choose to change or amend these by-laws as needed.*

### **Section I. Membership**

- A. Representation: The Commission shall be a minimum of 7 members and a maximum of ~~20~~ **13** members. Ideally, the Commission should represent a diverse cross section of the community, with participants selected from a variety of backgrounds, cultures, ethnicities, and ages. This is an advisory group pertaining to youth who live or go to school in Columbia Heights ~~youth~~ and should reflect the community. therefore members must be residents of Columbia Heights and provide their address upon application.
- B. Membership qualifications: Commission members shall be 14 to 18 years old at the time of the start of their appointed term. This means that Youth Commission members may be older than 18 as long as they are within the 14-18 age limit when they start a two-year term.
- C. Term duration and limits: Members shall serve two-year, staggered terms. Active terms shall run from Oct 1 to Sept 30 ~~(with the exception of the Commissions inaugural term, running from March 1 to Sept 30)~~, with monthly meetings throughout the school year (Oct through May). Members in good standing may be reappointed for a second term provided they still meet the membership qualifications.

Returning members will still need to submit an application.

Youth Commission By-Laws ~~draft Approved May 11~~ **April 5, 2023**

- D. Monthly Meetings: Monthly Meetings will be the second Wednesday of the Month, Oct through May, 6-7:30 pm. Meetings shall be held in recognized, accessible City public spaces allowing for public attendance. Special meeting revising date, time, and location is permitted with appropriate notice in accordance with open meeting law.
- E. City Council shall annually designate a Council Member to serve as Council Liaison to the Commission. A staff representative will be selected annually by the City Manager to support and guide the Commission as the official Staff Representative for the Commission. A back-up staff member shall also be appointed to assist with the head staff representative and substitute as needed. Administration staff shall provide the Staff Representative(s) and Youth Commission with additional assistance and clerical support as needed.
- F. In the event a member ages out of the membership requirement during their current term, they will finish their current term.
- G. Members who ~~move out of Columbia Heights during their term shall notify the commission of the status change as soon as they are aware of it~~ no longer either live in or go to school in Columbia Heights ~~They shall resign their membership effective on the last day of their residency~~ or school membership status within Columbia Heights. If ~~residents they~~ have moved out of or non-residents have stopped going to school in Columbia Heights prior to notifying the commission, their resignation is effective immediately. If their resignation brings the total number of Commission members below seven, a call for applications for a mid-term appointment will go out within one week of the member's notification of ~~residential change~~ resignation, with a two-week deadline for potential members to submit applications. Applications will be reviewed and acted on by the City Council at their earliest convenience. The City Council may hold optional interviews before making an emergency mid-term appointment.

## Section II. Attendance

A. Regular in-person attendance at Commission meetings is expected from Commission members, Liaisons, and Staff Representatives.

B. Three absences are allowed per year for each Commission member. In non-emergency cases, commissioners shall make a good-faith attempt to notify staff representative(s) at least one day prior to any absence. After the second absence the member will be notified by the Staff Representative to be reminded of the three-absence limit. Staff Representative may also discuss possible accommodations with the member if member is willing to share their reasons for the absences. After three excused absences with no make-up attempts, or three non-excused absences, the member's standing shall be brought to the Youth Commission for discussion. A majority of Youth Commission members may vote to recommend termination of membership. This recommendation then goes to the City Council to determine if circumstances warrant termination of membership for a confirmation vote.

B.C. Members may make up for an **excused** absence by attending a staff-approved alternate meeting or civic event within one month before or after the excused absence. With successful completion of a make-up activity, the excused absence will not be counted toward the three-absence limit.

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

C.D. One Ideally, one member of the Youth Commission shall be present for at least one regularly scheduled City Council meeting per month. That member may be designated on a monthly or annual basis by the Youth Commission. That member shall provide 72 hours notification to the City Clerk or Staff Representative if they would like to report to or update the City Council.

## Section III. Duties and Functions

- A. The Youth Commission shall keep the Columbia Heights City Council and Administration informed on matters concerning youth within the City, including but not limited to:
  - 1) building commitment to and raising awareness of youth issues;
  - 2) promoting public interest in and an understanding of youth issues and activities;
  - 3) fostering youth involvement in municipal decision-making;
  - 4) fostering cooperative interaction with social, health, and recreational programs;
  - 5) developing goals for improving youth engagement, including developing methods to monitor progress toward these goals;
  - 6) fostering educational opportunities including, but not limited to, field trips, tours, mentorship by Staff, Commissioner, or Council
- B. The Youth Commission shall hold public meetings and provide written recommendations to the Council on matters of youth interest initiated by or referred to the Commission
- C. Members shall participate in existing community events as well as create new events and projects
- D. Members shall stay informed on activities of the City Council, Boards and Commissions
- E. The Youth Commission shall build partnerships with other youth organizations in Columbia Heights and neighboring cities
- F. The Youth Commission shall provide representation to other organizations and groups as appropriate

#### Section IV. Application Process

- A. Members of the Commission shall be appointed through an application and optional interview. The City Council is responsible for both appointment and reappointment of members for each term year.
- B. To correspond with the school year, applications will be available in August and due mid-September.
- C. Interviews and selections will be made in late September.



- D. A designated Youth Commission member may attend applicant interviews and offer feedback to the City Council on the selection(s).

## Section V. Representatives

- A. Youth Commission members shall designate Youth Representatives for all active Boards and Commissions in the City. ~~When Youth Commission members have an excused absence, they should make every effort to secure an alternative representative to attend, or who follow up report back on any relevant topics discussed or decisions made by those boards and commissions, after the fact.~~
- ~~B. Youth Commission members shall designate appointees for representation to Council and other Boards and Commissions. An unexcused absence at a scheduled Council and/or Commission meeting will count as an absence against the representative member who was scheduled to attend.~~
- ~~C.~~ B. A Staff Representative shall be present at all Youth Commission meetings. If the designated Staff Representative or Assistant Staff Representative for the Youth Commission is unable to attend a meeting, the City Manager shall designate an alternative representative to attend ~~—if an alternative representative cannot be arranged in time, the meeting will be canceled~~
- ~~D.~~ C. Staff Representative(s) ~~and~~ City Clerk, ~~and Youth Commission Chair~~ shall organize and schedule educational presentations for Youth Commission meetings with input from Youth Commission members
- ~~E.~~ D. The Staff Representative or City Clerk shall take rollcall, note absences, and assist Commission members as needed, and provide instruction to the Youth Commission ~~secretary/treasurer members~~ on proper minute taking.
- ~~F.~~ E. Staff shall educate and assist Youth Commission members with responsibilities of their commission membership and offices relevant to a City Council advisory commission. This includes, but is not limited

to, training Youth Commission members on operating under Robert's Rules of Order and "best practices."

~~G.F.~~ Council Liaison shall act in a non-voting role.

~~H.G.~~ Staff Representative shall run Youth Commission meetings in the absence of both the Chair and Vice Chair.

~~H.H.~~ Where deemed appropriate, Staff Representative or City Clerk may step in to keep discussions on topic, offer suggestions or feedback, correct errors, or prevent legal mishaps.

## Section V. Officers

The officers of the Commission shall be Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer.

## Section VI. Officer Duties

### A. Chair.

- 1) The Chair shall be charged with the administration of the Commission with assistance from Staff Representatives
- 2) The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the Commission with assistance from Staff Representative and/or City Clerk.
- 3) The Chair shall appoint Ad Hoc committees as necessary.
- 4) The Chair will confer with City staff to help coordinate event and activity involvement.
- 5) The Chair will confer with the Staff Representative and City Clerk to coordinate guest and educational presentations.
- 6) The Chair shall break tie votes.

### B. Vice Chair

- 1) A Vice Chair shall assume the duties of the Chair during the Chair's absence.

2) A Vice Chair shall assist the Chair in performing duties as needed.

C. Secretary/Treasurer

1) The Secretary/Treasurer shall be responsible for record keeping, meeting minutes, and financial management ~~and will operate~~ under the guidance of the Staff Representative(s) and City Clerk.

~~2) The Secretary/Treasurer is responsible for recording meeting and event dates; all meeting minutes; monitoring designated representatives to outside commissions and organizations; other responsibilities as assigned by Chair and Staff Representative~~

~~3) The Secretary/Treasurer will consult with Staff Representative or City Clerk regarding budgetary matters as they pertain to the Youth Commission~~

D. Additional Officer Responsibilities

1) All three officers shall become familiar with the official By-Laws, Rules of Operation, and Robert's Rules of Order and ensure, to the best of their ability, that both are consistently followed.

2) An annual report of the activities of the Commission shall be prepared by the Chair and Chief Secretary/Treasurer near and before the end of the term, and in a timeframe that allows presentation to the City Council no later than the 2nd Council meeting in May.

## Section VII. Election of Officers

A. Chair, First Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer shall be elected by the membership annually at the first meeting of the new term and shall serve until their successors have been duly elected and sworn in.

Members may nominate themselves or another member for a specific role. Previous year's Chair will run the first meeting prior to the vote. If previous year's Chair is not present, previous year's Vice Chair

will assume those duties. If neither are present, the Staff Representative shall run the meetings until new officers are in place. Candidates are given up to five minutes to make their case for why they should be appointed to a specific role (this will usually only be relevant if more than one nominated member is seeking the same officer position at a time).

B. The Officers of the Commission shall be elected by a majority rollcall vote of members in attendance.

~~B.~~ Before running for officer positions, Youth Commission members should be reminded of the extra duties, responsibilities, and expectations taken on by officers

### Section VIII. Meetings

- A. With good cause, Youth Commission members may choose to change the date and time of meetings provided the proposed changes do not create conflicts with other pre-established meeting schedules of other city entities. Meeting date and/or time changes must be approved by a majority vote of the commission members and approved by the Staff Representative. Notifications of changes in day/time/location of meetings must be made in accordance with Open Meeting Law.
- B. The meetings shall include review of proposed agenda, minutes from the previous meeting, and reports; discussion of new and old business coming before the Commission. Meetings may also incorporate education or informational presentations.
- C. The Chair may call special meetings of the Commission with at least three days' notice. The call shall state the subject matter to be considered at the meeting. No other items will be addressed other than the reason for the Special Meeting. Special Meetings shall be noticed in accordance with Open Meeting Law.

### Section IX. General Rules

- A. All meetings shall be conducted in general conformance with Robert's Rules of Order.

- B. A quorum is necessary to transact official business at any meeting. The presence of at least half of the membership shall constitute a quorum.
- C. The Commission shall be responsible for its own procedures and order of business with guidance from the Staff Representative as needed. In consultation with the Staff Representative, the Commission may initiate or carry out activities addressing community concerns outside of regular meeting hours.

#### **Section X. By-Law Changes**

By-Laws shall be reviewed annually at the April meeting by Youth Commission members and the Staff Representative. After commission membership and staff review, the Commission Chair shall provide written changes, if any, to the Staff Representative for further feedback. The Staff Representative, in consultation with the City Manager and City Clerk may provide further changes to the By-Laws before an approval vote by the Commission. A two-thirds majority vote of approval by Youth Commission members shall be required for by-law changes. The City Council shall be notified of the changes at the first City Council meeting that takes place after the bylaw approval vote. The Youth Commission Chair, Staff Representative, or City Council may submit suggestions for By-Law updates or changes during the year, but action will not be taken to approve changes until the annually scheduled review or unless immediate action is deemed appropriate or necessary by a majority vote of the City Council.